
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
 
 
7:00 P.M. January 14, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Chaplain Jon Powers, Ohio Wesleyan University 

 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Year-End meeting of Council 

held on December 20, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 

Commission meeting held on October 24, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Sister City Advisory 
Board Committee meeting held on October 9, 2018, as recorded 
and transcribed. 

C. Resolution No. 19-01, a resolution cancelling the second regular 
meeting of City Council, May 27, 2019 due to the Memorial Day 
Holiday, and rescheduling the second regular meeting of City 
Council from December 23 to December 19, 2019.   
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

8. INTRODUCTIONS 
A. Susie Daily, Chief Information Officer 

 
9. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-02, a resolution honoring the life 

of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  
 
10. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-03, a resolution appointing 

members to the Terra Alta New Community Authority Board of Trustees.  



2 
 

 
11. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-118, an ordinance for Fahey Bank 

Company approving a Combined Preliminary and Final Development 
Plan for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 
(Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street.  
 

12. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-
119, an ordinance for Fahey Bank Company approving a Conditional Use 
Permit for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-
3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street.  
 

13. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-
120, an ordinance for Nutter Company LLC., approving a Conditional 
Use Permit for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing 
Development.  
 

14. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-121, an ordinance for Nutter 
Company LLC., approving a Combined Preliminary and Final 
Development Plan for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres 
on property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing 
Development.   
 

15. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-122, an ordinance establishing the 
salary and benefits of the Council Clerk, and declaring an emergency.  
 

16. REVIEW AND UPDATE of Troy Township Request to Amend 
Annexation/Utility Policy, Blake Jordan Public Utilities Director 
 

17. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

18. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
 























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-01 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  ---- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION CANCELLING THE SECOND REGULAR MEETING OF CITY 
COUNCIL MAY 27, 2019, DUE TO THE MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY, AND 
RESCHEDULING THE SECOND REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM DECEMBER 23 TO DECEMBER 19, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The second regular meeting in May of City Council falls on May 27 which is 
Memorial Day and city offices are closed.   
 
The second regular meeting in December of City Council falls on December 23 
which is prior to a city holiday.  
 
If approved, December 19 will be the second meeting of Council and considered 
the year-end meeting. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This legislation provides notice to the public of a deviation from the regular 
meeting schedule.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION 19-01 
 

A RESOLUTION CANCELLING THE SECOND 
REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL MAY 27, 
2019,  DUE TO THE MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY, 
AND RESCHEDULING THE SECOND REGULAR 
MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL FROM DECEMBER 23 
TO DECEMBER 19, 2019. 

 
 WHEREAS, City Council meets the second and fourth Monday of each 
month; and 
 
 WHEREAS, May 27 is the Memorial Day Holiday and city offices are 
closed.  City Council desires to cancel the second regular meeting of May with 
the understanding that should the need arise a meeting could be scheduled for 
later in the week; and 
 
 WHEREAS, December 23 is prior to a holiday.  City Council would like to 
reschedule the second regular meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.   That the May 27, 2019 regular meeting of City Council 
hereby cancelled.  
 
SECTION 2.  That the December 23, 2019 meeting is hereby rescheduled 

for December 19, 2019.  
 
SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 9    DATE: 1/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-02 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  ----- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION HONORING THE LIFE OF DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution will be recognized by the Martin Luther King (MLK) Celebration 
Committee at the upcoming MLK Breakfast on January 21. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-02 
        

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE LIFE OF DR. MARTIN 
LUTHER KING, JR. 

 
WHEREAS, the third Monday in January of each year has been set aside 

as a day to celebrate the life and dream of Martin Luther King, Jr., and 
 
 WHEREAS, this day should also be seen as a day to reaffirm the 
American ideals of freedom, justice and opportunity for all; as a day for love, 
not hate; for understanding, not anger; for peace, not war; and 
 

WHEREAS, on this important holiday people of all races, religions and 
classes in life may put aside their differences and join in a spirit of 
togetherness, and 
 

WHEREAS, this is a day for our nation, our state, and the City of 
Delaware to pay tribute to Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., who awakened in us the 
best qualities of the American spirit, and 
 

WHEREAS, this is a day for nations of the world to cease all violent 
actions, seek nonviolent solutions and demonstrate that peace is not just a 
dream but a real possibility. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED:                                   , 2019  YEAS       NAYS ___ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 1/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-03 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  ----- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE TERRA ALTA NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Ordinance 18-90 which was adopted December 10, 2018 by City 
Council, the Terra Alta New Community Authority (NCA) was established.  An 
NCA is governed by a Board of Trustees. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Ordinance 18-90 City Council appoints three Citizen Members and 
one member to serve as a Representative of Local Government to represent the 
interest of present and future residents of the District. In order to stagger the 
terms of its members, Ord. 18-90 establishes that two of the appointments will 
serve an initial one year terms and two will serve initial two year terms.  
 
There are currently no residents in the Terra Alta NCA.  The members 
appointed by this resolution will serve as representatives until future residents 
purchase homes in the NCA area. Staff anticipates adjusting the future terms 
to line up with the city’s other appointments, most recently reflected in the 
resolution where City Council set all the appointments term periods.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at this meeting to meet the deadline established for appointing 
members. 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-03 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
TERRA ALTA NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 18-90 adopted December 10, 2018 by 

this City Council, the Terra Alta New Community Authority was established, 
effective January 8, 2019, pursuant to Chapter 349.04 of the Ohio Revised 
Code, to govern a proposed new community district (the “District”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to that Ordinance the City Council of the City of 
Delaware, Ohio is to appoint three (3) Citizen Members representing the 
interests of present and future residents of the District,  and one (1) member to 
serve as a Representative of Local Government;  
 
 WHEREAS, the developer is to designate three (3) Development Members 
to the board with two of those Developer Members to serve initial one-year term 
and one of those Developer Member to serve an initial two-year term.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF DELAWARE, 
OHIO, CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 

Section 1. The following citizen members are hereby appointed to the 
Terra Alta New Community Authority Board of Trustees to serve a one (1) year 
term ending August 30, 2020: 

 
Appointee Term Ending Member 

Designation 
Name:  Jim Browning 
 
Address:  189 Hawthorn Blvd 
                Delaware, Ohio 
 

 
January 31, 2020 

 
Citizen Member 

Name:   Dave Efland 
 
Address:  1 South Sandusky St. 
                Delaware, Ohio 

 
January 31, 2020 

 
Citizen Member 

 
Section 2. The following Citizen Member is hereby appointed to the 

Terra Alta New Community Authority Board of Trustees to serve a two (2) year 
term ending August 31, 2021: 

 
 
 
 



 - 2 - 

Appointee Term Ending Member 
Designation 

Name:  Sean Hughes 
 
Address:  1 South Sandusky St. 
                Delaware, Ohio 
 

 
January 31, 2021 

 
Citizen Member 

 
Section 3. The following Representative of Local Government is hereby 

appointed to the Terra Alta New Community Authority Board of Trustees to 
serve a two (2) year term ending August 31, 2021: 

 
Appointee Term Ending Member 

Designation 
Name: Kent Shafer 
 
Address:  119 Springer Woods 
                Delaware, Ohio 
 

 
January 31, 2021 

Representative of 
Local Government 

 
 

Section 4. This City Council finds and determines that all formal 
actions of the City Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this 
Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this City Council and that all 
deliberations of this City Council and of any committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law. 
 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE:  01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-118   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FAHEY BANK ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jordan Selmek, Zoning Officer 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-118 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY 
APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FAHEY BANK ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED 
AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Fahey Bank Company for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street 
(PC Case 2018-2923). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Fahey Bank Company for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street, is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

3. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

4. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 
color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

5. All mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
6. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 

Official and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

7. Any directional and drive thru canopy signage shall achieve compliance 
with the zoning code and be reviewed and approved  
 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE:  01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-119   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       January 14, 2019 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY APPROVING A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT FOR FAHEY BANK ON APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED 
AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1150 Flood Plain Regulations of the zoning 
code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



Jordan Selmek, Zoning Officer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-119 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FAHEY 
BANK ON APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Fahey Bank Company for 
Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District) and located at 75 West William Street (PC Case 2018-2924) and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Fahey Bank Company for 
Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District) and located at 75 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant shall not add additional fill within the 100 year flood plain per 
Chapter 1150 Flood Plain Standards. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE:  01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-120   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       January 14, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., APPROVING A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES 
ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF 
THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING DEVELOPMENT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Jordan Selmek, Zoning Officer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-120 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR BLUE 
SKY CAR WASH ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING DEVELOPMENT. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Nutter Company LLC., for 
Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on property zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development (PC Case 2018-2936). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Nutter Company LLC., for 
Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on property zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development, is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. No other car washes shall be permitted within the Coughlin’s Crossing 
development (all Sub-Areas). 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE:  01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-121   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING 
DEVELOPMENT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Jordan Selmek, Zoning Officer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-121 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., 
APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON 
LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING 
DEVELOPMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Nutter Company LLC., for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development (PC Case 
2018-2937). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Nutter Company LLC., for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The developer shall execute an agreement for the subject lot and the lot to 
the north to share the proposed curb cut. 

3. The applicant shall show on their plans and record a cross access 
agreement adjacent to the north/south drive aisle to the out parcel to the 
north and south for internal access. Should the property to the north and 
south develop the owner of the out parcel to the north and south shall be 
required to utilize and perform any required improvements to complete 
access to the subject out parcel.    

4. The limestone on the building shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text.  



5. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

6. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
7. The applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 

color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  
8. The dumpster enclosure shall be constructed of stone to match the building 

and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 
9. Per the approved development text, stone piers shall be placed at regular 

intervals, street trees planted and a low 2-3 feet high undulating earthen 
mound along with front yard trees shall be installed along US 23 on the 
subject property. 

10. Shrubs a minimum 3 feet high at planting shall be installed along the 
northern property line adjacent to the parking lot and access drive. 

11. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

12. The building signage size, material and color shall be submitted and 
reviewed by staff for approval. 

13. A tree replacement payment in lieu of planting of trees of $5,786.88 shall 
be paid prior to approval of construction drawings. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE:  01/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-122   RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: THIRD     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND BENEFITS OF THE 
COUNCIL CLERK, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
When the Clerk of Council position was moved from part-time to full-time, it 
was placed in the Management Pay Plan.  Now that the duties and 
responsibilities of the position are clearer, City Council requested staff to 
conduct a position audit to help it determine the appropriate compensation 
level for the position.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
January 14, 2019 UPDATE: Council removed the Clerk’s position from the 
Management Pay Plan with an amendment to Ordinance 18-112 at the 
December 20, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 
December 20 2018: In making the adjustment to a position appointed by City 
Council, it makes sense to set the Clerk’s salary in the same manner as 
Council’s other appointee, the City Manager.  As such, this ordinance would 
set the Clerk of Council’s salary for 2019.  A corresponding change will remove 
the position from the Management Pay Plan. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
The adjustment will impact the 2019 General Fund based on increased wages 
and other costs/benefits that are associated with wages. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Typically, legislation enacting pay changes go to three readings. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
None 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-122 
  

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND 
BENEFITS OF THE COUNCIL CLERK, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

  
WHEREAS, the City Council Clerk (“Clerk”) is one of two positions 

appointed by City Council and is not subject to civil service laws; and 
 

WHEREAS, among other duties included in the job description, the Clerk 
is responsible for managing the Council packet and agenda process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Clerk leads the city’s sister city initiative; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk serves as City Council’s representative on the Main 

Street Delaware board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk bears responsibility for managing and maintaining 

the records of the legislative body as well as all Boards and Commissions of the 
City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Clerk’s duties require coverage of meetings occurring in 

the evening as well as daytime hours; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk uses independent judgment and discretion in 

fulfilling the duties of the position and setting her schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on an assessment of the duties of the Clerk conducted 

by city staff in 2018, the salary of the clerk should fall within the M2-M6 
classifications on the management pay plan.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1. The Council Clerk shall be paid a salary of $24.04 per hour 
effective December 26, 2018 which coincides with the new calendar year and 
the effective date of the management pay plan for 2019.  

  
SECTION 2.  The Council Clerk shall be entitled to the benefits offered to 

exempt employees in the current City of Delaware Summary of Benefits. 
 
SECTION 3.   Emergency Clause:  This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 26, 2018 which coincides 
with the new calendar year and the effective date of the management pay plan 



for 2019. Therefore this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



City Manager Report 20190114 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: January 10, 2019 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 December 17 
 * Rotary 
 * Engineered Materials Expansion Ribbon Cutting 
 * YMCA Meeting 
 December 18 
 * DKMM Solid Waste Board of Directors Meeting 
 December 20 
 * City Council Year-End Meeting 
 January 4 
 * Employee Birthday Breakfast 
 January 8 
 * Urban Terrorism Program 
 * 911 Board Meeting 
 * Sister City Advisory Board Meeting 
 January 9 
 * Tobacco Coalition Discussion 
 * Climate Lobby Discussion 
  
  
  



January 
2019 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
1 2 3 4 5 

City Offices Closed 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
Sister City Advisory 
Board Meeting 6p.m. 

Civil Service 3 p.m. 
BZA 6:30 p.m. 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
City Council Meeting 
7p.m. 

Parks & Rec Advisory 
Board 6:30 p.m. 

Planning Commission 
6:30 p.m. 

Airport Commission 
6:30 p.m. 

20 21 22 23 25 26 
Martin Luther King Jr. 
Day – City Offices 
Closed 

Finance 3:30 p.m. 
HPC 6:30 p.m. 

24 

27 28 29 30 31 
City Council Meeting 
7p.m. 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – January 14, 2019 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2019 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
JCI Jones Chemical Disinfection for water consumption $650.00/ton Public Utilities 
JCI Jones Chemical Dechlorination prior to the RO skids $294/ton Public Utilities 
Burgess and Niple Water Distribution model in continuous 

status 
$10,000 Public Utilities 

Treplus Communities Bikepath and Sanitary Sewer Easement 
for Burr Oak Commons LLC 

$17,500 Planning 

H2O Innovation Prevent formation and growth of solids 
on the RO membrane skids 

$1060/ drum Public Utilities 

USALCO, LLC Coagulation of the raw surface water for 
settling  

$444/ton Public Utilities 

City of Columbus Dept of Public 
Safety 

Columbus Department of Public Safety 
to train 3 newly hired police officers 

$14,000 Police 

Strawser Construction, Inc. Change order to extend time to make 
repairs on portion of microsurfacing that 
has failed 

$320,375.85 Public Works 

Sims Brothers Recycling Services Contract 2019 – $86/ton 
2020-$88/ton 
2021-$90/ton 

Public Works 

SourcePoint Business Associate Agreement –renewal 
of 2 Service Coordinators that link 
service to patients in need 

$45 – 20 hrs 
week 

Fire 

HDR Citywide signals improvements – DEL -
36-7.87; Modifications 1 HDR 

$159,578 
initial 

Public Works 

S2A2 Equities, LLC Benefits and responsibilities from the 
active two CRA and two School Pilot 
Payment Agreements from the previous 
owner Metal Stars II to new owner 

NA Economic 
Development 

ODOT US 23 and Hawthorn Blvd Traffic Signal 
Agreement 

N/A Public Works 


	01 20190114 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20181220 year end minutes
	03 20181024 Civil Service Minutes
	04 20181009 Sister City MInutes
	05 fact sheet res 19-01, reschedule council mtg
	06 res 19-01 ,reschedule council mtg
	RESOLUTION 19-01

	07 fact sheet res 19-02 honoring mlk
	08 res 19-02 honoring mlk
	09 fact sheet res 19-03, appoint terra alta nca
	10 res 19-03 appoint members to del south nca
	11 fact sheet ord 18-118, 2018-2923 Fahey Bank CPFDP
	12 ord 18- 118, 2018-2923 Fahey Bank CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-118

	13 fact sheet ord 18- 119, 2018-2924 Fahey Band CUP
	14 ord 18-119, 2018-2924 Fahey Bank CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-119

	15  Fahey Bank Staff Report
	16 fact sheet ord 18-120, 2018-2936 Blue Sky Car Wash CUP
	17 ord 18-120, 2018-2936 Ble Sky Car Wash CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-120

	18 fact sheet ord 18-121, 2018-2937 Blue Sky Car Wash CPFDP
	19 ord 18-121, 2018-2937 Blue Sky Car Wash CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-121

	20 blue Sky staff report
	21 Fact Sheet  ord 18-122, pay plan for Clerk of Council
	22 ord 18-122, council clerk compensation
	26 city managers report 20190114
	27 January 2019
	28 contract approval 20190114
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – January 14, 2019
	2019
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$650.00/ton
	JCI Jones Chemical
	Disinfection for water consumption

	$294/ton
	JCI Jones Chemical
	Dechlorination prior to the RO skids

	$10,000
	Burgess and Niple
	Water Distribution model in continuous status

	$17,500
	Treplus Communities
	Bikepath and Sanitary Sewer Easement for Burr Oak Commons LLC

	$1060/ drum
	H2O Innovation
	Prevent formation and growth of solids on the RO membrane skids

	$444/ton
	USALCO, LLC
	Coagulation of the raw surface water for settling 

	$14,000
	City of Columbus Dept of Public Safety
	Columbus Department of Public Safety to train 3 newly hired police officers

	$320,375.85
	Strawser Construction, Inc.
	Change order to extend time to make repairs on portion of microsurfacing that has failed

	2019 – $86/ton
	Sims Brothers
	Recycling Services Contract

	$45 – 20 hrs week
	SourcePoint
	Business Associate Agreement –renewal of 2 Service Coordinators that link service to patients in need

	$159,578 initial
	HDR
	Citywide signals improvements – DEL -36-7.87; Modifications 1 HDR

	NA
	S2A2 Equities, LLC
	Benefits and responsibilities from the active two CRA and two School Pilot Payment Agreements from the previous owner Metal Stars II to new owner

	N/A
	ODOT
	US 23 and Hawthorn Blvd Traffic Signal Agreement


	01 20190114 council  amended agenda.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS


